
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK jUDGE BUC!flfif.t~ T 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

NATIONAL COLLECTOR'S MINT, INC., 
a Delaware corporation, and 

l~s3o. cv 0 345 
STIPULATED PERMANENT 
INJUNCTION AND FINAL 
ORDER 

' :.···· 

A VRAM C. FREEDBERG, individually and as an 
officer ofNational Collector's Mint, Inc., ..... - ,, .. -· .:.... ·~ ....... ~ .. ' 

i. ,: i:. ~~ 

JAN 1 5 2013j i~! }.j 
·: l:r ,, .. , 

; . . .· D:-.3. ·;:_:; :.l{:..--i~{'ii"IT~~~-::, .. 1 
Plaintiff, *e Federal Trade Commission (the "Commission") filf:!d,.a,G0l~~ffi.tf'6i::Y;.i;~_., _ _,=,~J 

Defendants. 

Permanent Injunction and Other Equitable Relief, including redress to consumers and 

disgorgement of ill-gotten gains ("Complaint"), pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 of the Federal 

Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b, the Telemarketing and 

Consumer Fraud Abuse Prevention Act ("Telemarketing Acf'), 15 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6108, the 

Telemarketing Sales Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, the Unordered Merchandise Statute, 39 U.S.C. § 

3009, the Hobby Protection Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2101 (b), and the Commission's Rules related 

thereto, 15 C.F.R. Part 304. The Commission and Defendants, by and through their counsel, 

hereby stipulate to the entry of, and request the Court to enter, this Stipulated Permanent 

Injunction and Final Order ("Order"), to resolve all matters of dispute between them in this 

action. 

IT IS THEREFORE STIPULATED, AGREED, AND ORDERED as fo11ows: 

FINDINGS 

1 . This Court has jurisdiction over this matter. 



2. In its Complaint, the Commission charges that Defendants violated Section S(a) of the 

FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), the Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and Abuse 

Prevention Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6108, the Telemarketing Sales Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 

310, the Unordered Merchandise Statute, 39 U.S. C. § 3009, the Hobby Protection Act, 15 

U.S.C. § 2101 (b), and the Commission's Rules related thereto, 15 C.F.R. Part 304. 

3. The parties waive all rights to appeal or otherwise challenge or contest the validity of 

this Order. 

4. Defendants neither admit nor deny any of the allegations in the Complaint, except as 

specifically stated in this Order, and only for the purposes of this action, Defendants 

admit the facts necessary to establish jurisdiction. 

5. Defendants waive any claim that they may hold under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 

U.S.C. § 2412, concerning the prosecution of this action through the date of this Order. 

6. Each party shall bear its own costs and attorneys' fees. 

7. Entry of this Order is in the public interest. 

DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose ofthis Order, the following definitions apply; 

1. "Corporate Defendant" means National Collector's Mint, Inc., and its successors and 

assigns. 

2. "Defendants" means Corporate Defendant National Collector's Mint, Inc. and Individual 

Defendant Avram Frecdberg, individually, collectively, or in any combination. 

3. ''Imitation Numismatic Item" means an item which purports to be, but in fact is not, an 

original numismatic item or which is a reproduction, copy, or counterfeit of an original 

numismatic item. 

4. "l~tdividual Defendant" means A vram Freedberg. 

5. "Materiaf' means likely to affect a person's choice of~ or conduct regarding, goods 
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or services. 

6. ''Origi1tal Numismatic Item" means anything which has been a part of a coinage or issue 

which has been used in exchange or has been used to commemorate a person, object, 

place, or event. Such term includes coins, tokens, paper money, and commemorative 

medals. 

7. The words "and'' and "or" shall be understood to have both conjunctive and 

disjunctive meanings. 

INJUNCTION 

I. PROHIBITION AGAINST MISREPRESENTATIONS 

IT IS ORDERED that the Defendants, their officers, agents, servants, employees, and 

attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any of them, who receive 

actual notice of this Order, in connection with the advertising, marketing, promotion, offering for 

sale, or sale of any good or service, including numismatic items, arc hereby permanently 

restrained and enjoined from misrepresenting or assisting others in misrepresenting, expressly or 

by implication, any material fact, including: 

A. Any material aspect of the performance, efficacy, nature, characteristics, benefits, 

or qualities of any good or service; 

B. The total costs to purchase, receive, or use, and the quantity of, any good or 

service~ 

C. Any material restriction, limitation, or condition to purchase, receive, or use any 

good or service; 

D. Any material aspect of the nature or terms of any refund, cancellation, exchange, 

or repw·chase policy, including, the likelihood of a consumer obtaining a full or 

partial refund, or the circumstances in which a full or partial refund will be 

granted to the consumer; and 
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E. That any Defendant is an agency of or affiliated with, endorsed or approved by, or 

otherwise connected to the Federal government, a state government, or a foreign 

government. 

II. REQUIRED DISCLOSURES 

IT IS ORDERED that Defendants, their officers, agents, servants, employees, and 

attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any of them, who receive 

actual notice of this Order, in connection with the advertising, marketing, promotion, offering for 

sale, or sale of any good or service, including numismatic items, are hereby permanently 

enjoined from failing to disclose, clearly and conspicuously, before a customer consents to pay 

for any good or service: 

A. The total fees and costs associated with the sales transaction; 

B. All material terms and conditions of any cancellation or refund policy, including, 

whether: 

1 . In order to receive a refund from Defendants, consumers must pay for 

insurance and shipping; and 

2. Consumers must obtain a RMA number that can only be obtained through 

a live operator; and 

C. Any material limitation or condition that applies to any "Satisfaction Guarantee" 

or similar representation. 
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HI. PROHIBITION AGAINST VIOLATING 
THE UNORDERED MERCHANDISE STATUTE 

IT IS ORDERED that Defendants, their otlicers, agents, servants, employees, and 

attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any of them, who receive 

actual notice of this Order, in connection with the advertising, offering for sale, sale or 

distribution of any good or service, including numismatic items, are hereby permanently 

restrained and enjoined from violating or assisting others in violating any of the provisions of the 

Unordered Merchandise Statute, 39 U.S.C. § 3009 (attached hereto as Attachment A), including: 

A. Sending any merchandise without the prior expressed request or consent of the 

recipient unless such merchandise is clearly and conspicuously marked as a free 

sample and has attached to it a clear and conspicuous statement that the recipient 

may treat the merchandise as a gift and may retain, use, discard, or dispose of it in 

any manner without any obligation whatsoever to the sender; and 

B. Sending any communication, including bills, invoices, reminders, letters, notices, 

or dunning communications, that in any manner seek to obtain payment for any 

merchandise shipped without the prior expressed request or consent of the 

recipient. 

IV. PROHIBITION AGAINST DECEPTIVE AND ABUSIVE 
TELEMARKETING PRACTICES 

IT IS ORDERED that Defendants, their officers, agents, servants, employees, and 

attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any of them, who receive 

actual notice of this Order, in connection with the advertising, marketing, promotion, oftering for 

sale, or sale of any good or service, including numismatic items, are hereby permanently 

restrained and enjoined fi·om violating or assisting others in violating, il.l any manner, any 

provision of the Commission's Telemarketing Sales Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 310 (attached hereto as 

Attachment B), as currently promulgated or as it may hereafter be amended, including, any of the 

following: 
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A. Failing to disclose, or disclose adequately, to consumers, the total costs to 

purchase, receive, or use, and the quantity of, any goods or services that arc the 

subject of a sales offer, in violation ofScction 310.3(a)(l)(i) of the TSR, 16 

C.F.R. Part 310.3(a)(l)(i); 

B. Failing to disclose, or disclose adequately, to consumers material aspects of any 

refund policy, in violation of Section 310.3(a)(l)(iii) of the TSR, 16 C.F.R. Part 

31 0.3( a)( l )(iii); 

C. Misrepresenting, directly or indirectly, any material aspect of the central 

characteristics of goods or services that are the subject of a sales offer, in 

violation of Section 31 0.3(a)(2)(iii) of the TSR, 16 C.F.R. Part 31 0.3(a)(2)(iii); 

D. Causing billing information to he submitted for payment when using a payment 

method other than a credit card or a debit card, without the consumer's express 

verifiable authorization, in violation of Section 31 0.3(a)(3) of the TSR, 16 C.F.R. 

Part 310.3(a)(3); 

E. Making any fltlse or misleading statements to induce consumers to pay for goods 

or services or to induce a charitable contribution, in violation of Section 

310.3(a)(4) of the TSR, 16 C.F.R. Part 310.3(a)(4); and 

F. Causing hilling information to be submitted for payment without the express 

informed consent of the consumer, in violation of Section 31 0.4( a)(7) of the TSR, 

16 C.F.R. Part 310.4(a)(7). 

V. PROHIBITION AGAINST VIOLATING THE HOBBY PROTECTION 
ACT AND ITS RELATED RULES 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendants, their officers, agents, servants, 

employees, and attorneys, and all other persons in active concet1 or participation with any of 

them, who receive actual notice of this Order, whether acting directly or indirectly, in connection 

with the manufacture in or importation into the United States, for introduction into or distribution 
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in commerce of any Imitation Numismatic Item, are hereby pennanently restrained and enjoined 

from violating the Hobby Protection Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2101~2106, and from violating any 

provision of the HPA Rules. 16 C.F.R. Part 304 (attached hereto as Attachment C), including by 

failing to mark with the word "COPY," plainly, pennanently, legibly, conspicuously, and 

nondeceptively, any Imitation Numismatic Item. 

VI. EQUITABLE MONETARY RELIEF 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that: 

A. Judgment is hereby entered in favor of the Commission and against Defendants, 

jointly and severally, in the amount of$750,000.00, for the payment of equitable 

monetary relief, including consumer restitution or disgorgement, and for paying 

any attendant expenses of administration of any redress fund. Funds paid to the 

Commission pursuant to this Section shall be deposited into a fund administered 

by the Commission or its designee to be used for equitable relief, including 

consumer restitution and any attendant expenses for the administration of any 

redress fund. Defendants will cooperate fully to assist the Commission or its 

designee in identifying consumers who may be entitled to redress pursuant to this 

Order. In the event that direct redress to consumers is wholly or partially 

impracticable or funds remain after redress is completed, the Commission or its 

designee may apply funds for any other equitable relief (including consumer 

infonnation remedies) that they determine to be reasonably related to Defendants' 

practices alleged in the Complaint. Any funds not used for this equitable relief 

shall be deposited into the U.S. Treasury as disgorgement. Defendants shall have 

no right to challenge the Commission's choice of remedies under this Section. 

B. Prior to or concurrently with Defendants' execution of this Order, Defendants 

shall tum over the full amount of the equitable monetary relief to their attorneys, 

who shall hold the entire sum for no purpose other than payment to the 

Commission after entry of this Order by the Court. Within five (5) days of receipt 

of notice ofthe entry of this Order, Defendants' attorneys shall transfer the 
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Order: 

sum of $750,000.00 in the form of a wire transfer or certified cashier's check 

made payable to the Federal Trade Commission. The check or written 

confirmation of the wire transfer shall be delivered in accordance with the 

instructions provided by a representative of the Commission. 

C. Defendants relinquish all dominion, control, and title to the funds paid to the 

fullest extent permitted by law. Defendants shall make no claim to or demand 

return of the funds, directly or indirectly, through counsel or otherwise. 

D. Defendants agree that the facts as alleged in the Complaint tiled in this action 

shall be taken as true without further proof in any bankruptcy case or subsequent 

civil litigation pursued by the Commission to enforce its rights to any payment or 

money judgment pursuant to this Order, including but not limited to a 

nondischargeability complaint in any bank!uptcy case. Defendants further 

stipulate and agree that the facts alleged in the Complaint establish all elements 

necessary to sustain an action by the Commission pursuant to Section 

523(a)(2)(A) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(2)(A), and that this 

Order shall have collateral estoppel effect for such purposes. 

VII. ORDER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants obtain acknowledgments of receipt of this 

A. Each Defendant, within 7 days of entry of this Order, must submit to the 

Commission an acknowledgment of receipt of this Order sworn under penalty of 

perjury. 

B. For ten (1 0) years after entry of this Order, each Individual Defendant for any 

business that such Defendant, individually or collectively with any other 

Defendant, is the majority owner or directly or indirectly controls, and each 

Corporate Defendant, must deliver a copy of this Order to: (I) aU principals, 

officers, directors, and managers; (2) all employees, agents, and representatives 

who participate in the advertising, marketing, promotion, otTering for sale, sale, 
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manufacture in or importation into the United States, for introduction into or 

distribution in commerce of any coins, proof..'), collectibles, or other numismatic 

items; and (3) any business entity resulting from any change in structure as set 

forth in the Section titled Compliance Reporting. Delivery must occur within 7 

days ·of entry of this Order for current personnel. To all others, delivery must 

occur before they assume their responsibilities. 

C. From each individual or entity to which a Defendant delivered a copy of this 

Order, that Defendant must obtain, within 30 days, a signed and dated 

acknowledgment of receipt of this Order. 

VIII. COMPLIANCE REPORTING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants make timely submissions to the 

Commission: 

A. One year after entry of this Order, each Defendant must submit a compliance 

report, sworn under penalty of pe:rjury. 

1. Each Defendant must: (a) designate at least one telephone number and an 

email, physical, and postal address as points of contact, which 

representatives of the Commission may use to communicate with 

Defendant; (b) identify all of that Defendant's businesses by all of their 

names, telephone numbers, and physical, postal, email, and Internet 

addresses; (c) describe the activities of each business, including the 

products and services offered, the means of advertising, marketing, and 

sales, and the involvement of any other Defendant (which Individual 

Defendant must describe if they know or should know due to their own 

involvement); (d) describe in detail whether and how that Defendant is in 

compliance with each Section of this Order; and (e) provide a copy of 

each Order Acknowledgment obtained pursuant to this Order, unless 

previously submitted to the Commission. 
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2. Additionally, each Individual Defendant must: (a) identify all telephone 

numbers and all email, Internet, physical, and postal addresses, including 

all residences; (b) identify all titles and roles in all business activities, 

including any business for which such Defendant pertonns services 

whether as an employee or otherwise and any entity in which such 

Defendant has any ownership interest; and (c) describe in detail such 

Defendant's involvement in each such business, including title, role, 

responsibilities, participation, authority, control, and any ownership. 

B. For twenty (20) years following entry of this Order, each Defendant must submit 

a compliance notice, sworn under penalty of perjury, within 14 days of any 

change in the following: 

l. Each Defendant must report any change in: (a) any designated point of 

contact; or (b) the structure of any Corporate Defendant or any entity that 

Defendant has any ownership interest in or directly or indirectly controls 

that may affect compliance obligations arising under this Order, including: 

creation, merger, sale, or dissolution of the entity or any subsidiary, 

parent, or affiliate that engages in any acts or practices subject to this 

Order. 

2. Additionally, each Individual Defendant must report any change in: (a) 

name, including aliases or fictitious name, orrcsidence address; or (b) title 

or role in any business activity, including any business for which such 

Defendant performs services whether as an employee or otherwise and any 

entity in which such Defendant has any ownership interest, and identify its 

name, physical address, and Internet address, if any. 

C. Each Defendant must submit to the Commission notice of the filing of any 

bankruptcy petition, insolvency proceeding, or any similar proceeding by or 

against such Defendant within 14 days of its filing. 
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D. Any submission to the Commission required by this Order to be sworn under 

penalty of perjury must be tme and accurate and comply with 28 U.S.C. § 1746, 

such as by concluding: "I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the 

United States of America that the foregoing is tnle and correct. Executed on: 

__ "and supplying the date, signatory's full name, title (if applicable), and 

signature. 

E. Unless otherwise directed by a Commission representative in writing, all 

submissions to the Commission pursuant to this Order must be emailed to 

DEbrief@ftc.gov or sent by overnight courier (not the U.S. Postal Service) to: 

Associate Director for Enforcement, Bureau of Consumer Protection, Federal 

Trade Commission, 600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Washington, DC, 20580; 

RE: FTC v. National Collector's Mint, Inc. and Avram Freedberg, Case No. 

IX. RECORDKEEPING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants must create certain records for twenty (20) 

years after entry of the Order, and retain each such record for five (5) years. Specifically, 

Corporate Defendant, in connection with telemarketing, and each Individual Defendant for any 

business in which that Defendant, individually or collectively with any other Defendants, is a 

majority owner or directly or indirectly controls, must maintain the following records: 

A. Accounting records showing the revenues from all goods or services sold, all 

costs incurred in generating those revenues, and the resulting net profit or loss; 

B. Personnel records showing, for each person providing services; whether as an 

employee or otherwise, that person's: name, addresses, and telephone numbers; 

job title or position; dates of service; and; if applicable, the reason for termination; 

C. Customer files showing the names, addresses, telephone numbers, dollar amounts 

paid, and the quantity and description of goods or services purchased, to the 

extent such information is obtained in the ordinary course of business; 
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D. Complaints and refund requests, whether received directly or indirectly, such as 

through a third party, and any response; 

E. All records necessary to demonstrate full compliance with each provision of this 

Order, including all submissions to the Commission; and 

F. A copy of each advertisement or other marketing material. 

X. COMPLIANCE MONITORING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for the purpose of monitoring Defendants' compliance 

with this Order: 

A. Within 14 days of receipt of a written request from a representative of the 

Commission, each Defendant must: submit additional compliance reports or other 

requested information, which must be swom under penalty of petjury; appear for 

depositions; and produce documents, for inspection and copying. The 

Commission is also authorized to obtain discovery, without further leave of court, 

using any of the procedures prescribed by Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 29, 30 

(including telephonic depositions), 31, 33, 34, 36, 45, and 69. 

B. For matters concerning this Order, the Commission is authorized to communicate 

directly with each Defendant. Defendant must permit representatives of the 

Conunission to interview any employee or other person at1iliated with any 

Defendant who has agreed to such an interview. The person interviewed may 

have counsel present. 

C. The Commission may use all other lawful means, including posing, through its 

representatives, as consumers, suppliers, or other individuals or entities, to 

Defendants or any individual or entity affiliated with Defendants, without the 

necessity of identi:l:ication or prior notice. Nothing in this Order limits the 

Commission's lawful use of compulsory process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of 

the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 49, 57b-1. 
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XI. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION 

IT IS FlJRTI-IER ORDERED that this Court retains jurisdiction of chis rna(ter fol' 

purposes of cottstruction, modification, and enforcement of this Ol'der. 

SO ORDERED this_day of ______ , 2012. 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 

SO STIPULATED AND AGREED: 

FOR PLAINTIFF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION: 

«_,'(-{.'~4'_~~LLr;:{t;r.-,f: Dated: /-IS- 2 D I?. 
vetlana S. Gans 

Gary L. lvetlS 
Attorneys 
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW. Rm. 286 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
Phone: (202) 326~3708 {Gens}: 2330 {Ivens) 
Fax: {202) 326-3395 
Email: s~tansrti)lkgov: givensfa1ftc.gov 

FOR DE~A S NATLONAL COLLECTOR'S MINT. fNC., AND AVRAM FREEDBERG: 

~~ .Y ·· ... · Dated: ;tjf:?//L 
Sfie!don ustil!l ~ I . -p-
Mdrew Lustigman 

.-Olshan, Grundman. Frome. Rosenzweig & Wolosky, LLP 
Cozmselfor Nation,rl Collector '.v Mliu, Inc., and .4.l'l'GJ17 Fraedberg 

FOR DEFENDANTS NATIONAL COLLECTOR ·s MlNT. INC., AND A VRAM FREEDBERG: 

Date.d: _1....;.;--;.L~r-_·.~...!__,_')... __ 

Hnd as an Oflicer ofNational Coilector·s Mint. lnc. 

- f 3. 



Attachment A 
(Unordered Merchandise Statute) 



'l'ITLE 39-POSTAT, f3l'~RVICE Page 66 

§ 3009. Mailing of unordered merchandise 

(a) Except for (l) free samples clearly ,lnd con­
spicuously marked as such, and (2) merchandise 
mailed by a charitable organization soliciting 
contributions, the mailing of unordered mer­
chandise or of commun.ications prohibited by 
subsection (c) of this section constitutes an un­
fair method of compeiiiion and an unfair trade 
practice in violation of seetion. 45(a)(l) of title 
15. 

(b) Any merchandise mailed in violation of 
subsection (:1-) of this section. or within the ex­
ceptions contained therein, may be treated as a 
gift by the recipient, who shall have the right to 
retain, use, discard, or dispose of it in any man­
ner he sees fit withou.t any obligation whatso­
ever to the sender. AU such merchandise shall 
have attached to it a clear and conspicuous 
statement informing the recipient that he may 
treat the merchandise as a gift to him and has 
the right to retain, use. discard, or dispose of it 
in any manner he sees fit without any obligation 
whatsoever to the sendel'. 



Page 67 TITLE 3!)-POSTAL SERVICE 

(c) No mailer of any merchandise mailed in 
violation of subsection tal of this section, or 
within the exeeptions contained therein, shall 
mail t.o any recipient of such merchandise a bill 
for such merehandife or any dunning commu­
nications. 

(d) For the purposes of this section, "un­
ordered merchandise" means merchandise 
mailed without the pl'lor expressed request or 
consent of the recipient. 

<Pub. L. 91-375, Aug. 12, UJ70. 84 Stat. '/19.) 



Attachment B 
(Telemarketing Sales Rule) 



Federal Trade Commission 

PART 31Q-TELEMARKETING SALES 
RULE 16 CFR PART 310 

Sec. 
310.1 Scope of regulations in this part. 
310.2 Definitions. 
310.3 Deceptive t.elemarketing acta or prac­

ticeR. 
310.4 Abusive telemarketing acta or prac-

tices. 
310.5 Recol'dkeeping requirements. 
310.6 Exemptions. 
810.7 Actions by states and private persons. 
310.8 Fl7o for access to the National Do Not 

Call Registry. 
310.9 Severability. 

AUTHOR!TY: 15 U.S. C. 6101-6108. 

§310.2 

SOURCE: 75 FR 41l.'i16, Aug. .10, 2010, unless 
otherwise noted. 

§ 310.1 Scope of regulations in this 
part. 

This part implements the Tele­
marketing and Consumer Fraud and 
Abuse Prevention Act, 15 U.S.C. 6101-
6108. as amended. 

§ 310.2 Definitions. 

(a) Acquirer means a business organi­
zation, financial institution. or an 
agent of a business organization or fi­
nancial institution that has authority 
from an organization that operates or 
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§310.2 

licenses a credit card system to author­
ize merchants to accept, t.ra.nsmit. or 
process payment by credit card 
through the credit card BYstem for 
money, goods or services. or anything 
else of value. 

(b) Attorney General means the chief 
legal officer of a state. 

(c) Billing information means any data 
that enables any person to access a 
customer's or donor's account, such as 
a erodit card, cl!ecking, savings, share 
or similar account, utility bill, mort­
pge loan account. or debit card. 

(d) Caller identification service means a 
service that allows a telephone sub­
serlber to have the telephone number, 
and. where available, name of the call­
ing party transmitted contempora­
neously with Lhe telephone call, and 
displayed on a device In or eonnected 
to the subscriber's t.elephone. 

(e) Cardholder means a person to 
whom a eredit card is issued or who is 
authorized to use a credit c trd on be­
half of or in addition to the person to 
whom the eredit card is issued. 

(f) Charitable contribution means any 
donation or gift of money or a.ny ot.her 
thing of value. 

(g) Commission means the Federal 
Trade Commission. 

(h) Creclit means the right granted by 
a. creditor to a debtor to defer payment 
of debt or to ineur clebt and defer its 
payment. 

(i) Credit card means any card, plate, 
eoupon book, or other credit device ex­
isting for the purpose of obtaining 
money. property, labor, or services on 
credit. 

(j) Credit card sales draft means any 
record or evidence of a eredit card 
transaction. 

(kl Credit card system means any 
method or procedure used to proeess 
credit card transaetions involving ered­
it earns issued or licensed by the oper­
ator of that system. 

(l) Customer means any person who is 
or may be required to pay for goods or 
services offered through tele­
marketing. 

(m) Debt relief service means :tny pro­
gram or service represented, directly or 
by implication, to renegotiate. settle, 
or in any way alter the terms of Pl.Y­
ment or other terms of the debt be­
tween a person and one or more unse-

16 CFR Ch. I (1-1-12 Edition) 

cored creditors or debt collectors. in­
cluding, but not limited to, a reduetion 
in the balance. interest rate, or fees 
owed by a person to an unsecured cred­
itor or debt collector. 

(n) Donor means any person solicited 
to make a charitable contribution. 

(o) 8stablished business relationship 
means a relationship between a seller 
aud a eonsumer based on: 

{1) Lhe consumer's purchase. rental. 
or lAase of t.he seller's goods or services 
or a financial transaction between the 
consumer and seller, within the eight­
een (18) months immediately preceding 
the date of a telemarketing call; or 

(2) the consumer's inquiry or appliea­
Lion regarding a product or servi<;e of­
fered by t,he seller. within tho three (:3) 
months immediately preceding the 
date of a telemarketing call. 

(p) Free-to-pay conversion means, in 
an offer or ag-reement to sell or provide 
~wy goods or services, a provision 
under which a customer receives a 
product o1· service for free for an initial 
period and will incur an obligation to 
pay for the produet or service if he or 
she does not take affirmative action to 
cancel before the end of that period. 

(q) Investment opportunity means any­
thing, tangible or intangible, that is of­
fered, offered for sale. sold, or traded 
based wholly or in part on representa­
tions, either express or implied, about 
past. present, or future income, profit, 
or appreciation. 

(r) Material means likely to affeet a 
person's choice of, or eonduct; regard· 
ing. goods or services or a charitable 
contribution. 

(s) Merchant means n person who is 
authorized under a written contraet 
with an acquirer to honor or accept 
credit cards. or to transmit or process 
for payment er·ed!t card payments, for 
the purehase of goods or services or a 
charital)le contribution. 

(t) lvlerchant a,qreement means a writ­
ten contract between a merchant and 
an acquirer to honor or accept credit 
cards, or to transmit or process for 
payment credit eard payments, for the 
purchase of goods or serviees or a char­
itable contribution. 

(u) Negative option feature me1-ns, in 
an offer or agreement to sell or provide 
any goods or services. a provision 
under wlliuh the c:.ustomer's silence or 
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Federal Trade Commission 

failure to take an affirmative action to 
reject goods or services or to cancel the 
agreement is interpreted by the seller 
as acceptance of the offer. 

(v) Outbound telephone call means a 
telephone call initiated by a tale­
marketer to induce the purchase of 
g-oods or services or to solicit a chari­
table contribution. 

(w) Person means any individual, 
group, unincorporated "-S<~ociation. lim­
ited or g-eneral partnership, corpora­
tion, or other business entity. 

(x) Preacquired account information 
means any information th,\t enable!'! a 
seller or telemarketer to C"-USe a 
charge to he placed aJ.rainst a cus­
tomer's or donor's account without oh­
t:~lning the account number directly 
from the customer or donor during the 
telemarketing transaction pursuant to 
which the aceount will be charged. 

(Y) Prize means anything offered, or 
purportedly offered, and given, or pur­
portellly given, to a person by chance. 
B'or purposes of this deflnltton. chance 
exists if a person is guarant.eed to re­
ceive an item and. at the time of the 
offer or purported offer. the tele­
marl{et.er does not identify tho specific 
item that the person will receive. 

(z) Prize promotion means: 
(1) A sweepstakes or other g·amo of 

cha.nce; or 
(2) An oral or written express or im­

plied representation that a person has 
won, has been selected to receive. or 
may be eligible to receive a prize or 
purported prize. 

(aa) Seller means any person who, in 
eounection with a telemarketing trans­
action. provides, offers to provide, or 
arranges for others to provltle goods or 
services to the customer in flxehange 
for consideration. 

(bb) State means any state of the 
United States, the District of Colum­
bia, Puerto Rico, the Northern Mariana 
Islands. and auy territory or possession 
of the United States. 

(co) Telema?·keter means any person 
who, in connection with telemarketing, 
initiates or receives telephone calls to 
or from a customer or donor. 

(dd) Telemarketing means a plan, pro­
gram. or campaign which is conduct.ell 
to induce the purchJ.se of goods or Rel'V­
lces or a charitable contribution, by 
use of one or more telephones and 
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which involves more than one Inter­
state telePhone call. The term does not 
Include t.he solicitation of sales 
through the mailing of a catalog 
which: contains a written description 
or illustration of the goods or services 
offered for sale; includes the business 
atldress of the seller; includes multiple 
pages of written material or illustra­
tions: and has been issued not less fre­
quentJy than once a year. when the 
person making the solicitation does 
not solicit customers by telephone but 
only receives calls initiated by cus­
tomers in response to the catalog and 
c'luring those calls takes orde1·s only 
without further solicitation. l~or pur­
poses of the previous sentence, the 
term "further solicitation" does not 
include providing t;he customer with 
information about, or attempting to 
sell, any other item included in the 
same catalog which prompted the cus­
tomer's call or in a substantially simi­
lar catalog. 

(ee) Upsell1ng means soliciting the 
purchase of gootls or services following 
an initial transaction during a single 
telephone call. 'rho upsell is a separate 
telemarketing transaction, not a con­
tinuation of the initi:J.l transaction. An 
''external upsell'' is a solicitation 
made by or on behalf of a seller dif­
ferent from the seller in the initial 
transaction, regardless of whether the 
initial transaetion and the subsequent 
solicitation are made by the same tela­
marketer. An ''internal upsen·· is a so­
licitation made by or on behalf of the 
same seller as in the initial trans­
action, r·egardless of whether the ini­
tial transJ.ction and subsequent solici­
tation arc made by the same tale­
marketer. 

§ 310.3 Deceptive telemarketing acts or 
practices. 

(a) Prohibited deceptive telemarketing 
acts or practices. It is a deceptive tele­
marketing act or practice and a viola­
tion of this Rule for a.ny seller or tole­
marketer to engage in the following 
conduct: 
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(1) Before a customer consents to 
po.y 6'•9 for goods or service~ offered, 
failing to disclose truthfully, in a clear 
and conspicuous manner, the following 
material information: 

(l) The total costs to purchase, re­
ceive, or use, and the quantity of, any 
goods or services that are the subject 
of the sales offer; Gao 

(ii) All material restrictions. limita­
Lions, or conditions to purchase, re­
ceive, or use the goods or services that 
ure the subject of the sales offer; 

(iiiJ If the seller has . .t policy of not 
making refunds, cancellations, ex­
changes. or repurchases, a statement 
informing the customer that this is the 
seller's policy; or. if the seller or tela­
marketer makes a representation 
about a refund. cancellation, exchange, 
or repurchase policy, a statement of all 
material terms and conditions of such 
policy; 

tiv) In any prize promotion, the odds 
of being able to receive the prize, and, 
if the odds are not calculable in ad­
vance. the factors used in calculating 
the odds: that no purchase or payment 
ls required to win a prize or to partici­
pate in a prize promotion and that any 
purchase or payment will not increase 
the person's chances of winning; and 
the no-purchasc.'no-payment method of 
participating in the prize promotion 
with either instructions on how to par­
ticipate or an address or local or toll­
free telephone number to which cus­
tomers may write or call for informa­
tion on how to participate; 

cs• When a seller or telemarketer uses. or 
directs a customer to use, a courier to trans­
port payment, the seller or telemarketer 
must make the disclosures required by 
§ 310.3(a)(l) before sending a courier to pick 
up payment or authorization for payment, or 
directing a customer to have a courier pick 
up payment or authorization for payment. In 
the case of debt relief services, the seller or 
telemarketer must make t.he disclosnr•~t re" 
qulred by §310.3(a)<l) before tile eonaumer en­
rolls in an offered program. 

6ll0 For offers of eonsumer credit pl'orluot.s 
subJect to t.he Truth in Lending Act, 15 
U.S. C. 1601 et $eq., awl Rugulat!on z. 12 CFR 
226, compliance wlth the disclosure require­
ments uncler the Truth in Lending Act and 
Regulation Z shall constitute compliance 
with § 310.3(a)(l)(i) of this Rule. 
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tvl All material costs or conditions 
to receive or redeem a prize that is the 
subject of t.he prize promotion; 

(vi) In the sale of any goods or serv­
iees represented to prot;ect, insure, or 
otherwise limit a customer's liability 
in t.lle event of unaut.horlzod use of the 
customer'A credit earn, the limits on a 
cardholder's liability for unauthorized 
use of a credit card pursuant to 15 
u.s.a. 1643; 

(vi!) If the offer includes a negative 
option feature, all material terms and 
conditions of the negative option fea­
ture, including, but not limited to, the 
fact that the customer's account will 
be charged unless the customer takes 
an affirmative action to avoid the 
charge(s), the date(s) the charge(SJ will 
be submitted for payment, and the spe­
cific steps the customer must take to 
avoid the charge(s); and 

(viii) In the SJ.le of any debt relief 
servi(~e: 

(A) the amount of time necessary to 
achieve the .represented results, and to 
the extent that t.he service may include 
a settlement offer to any of the cus­
tomer's creditors or debt collectors. 
the time by which the debt relief serv­
ice provider will make a bona fide set­
tlement offer to each of them: 

(B) to the extent that the service 
may include a settlement offer to any 
of the customer's creditors or debt col­
lectors, the amount of money or tho 
percentage of each outstanding debt 
that the cust;omer must accumulate be­
fore the debt relief service provider 
will make a bona fide settlement offer 
to each of them; 

(C) to the extent tbn.t any aspect of 
the debt relief service relles upon or re­
sults in the customer's failure to make 
timely payments to creditors or debt 
collectors, that the use of the debt re­
lief service will likely adversely affect 
t.he customer's creditworthiness, may 
result in the customer being subject to 
collections or sued by creditors or debt 
collectors, and may increase t11e 
amount of money the customer owes 
due to the accrual of fees and interest; 
and 

(D) to the extent that the debt relief 
service requests or requires the cus­
tomer to place fttnds in an account at 
n.n insured financial institution. that 
the customer owns the funds held in 
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the account, the customer may with­
draw from the debt, relief service at any 
Lime without penalty, and, if the cus­
tomer withdtaws, the customer must 
receive all funds In the account, other 
than funds earned by the debt relief 
service in eompliance with 
§310.4(a)(5)(i)(A) through (0). 

(2) Misrepresenting, directly or l>y 
implication, in the sale of goods or 
services any of the following material 
information: 

(i) The total costs to purchase, re­
ceive, or use. and the quantity of. any 
g·oods or services that are the subject 
of a sales offer; 

(ii) Any material restriction. limita­
tion, or condition to purchase, receive, 
or use goods or services that are the 
subject of a sales offer; 

(iii) Any material aspect of the per­
formance, eff!Ntey, nature. or central 
characteristics of goods or services 
t.hat are the subject of a sales offer; 

(tv) Any material aspect of the na­
t.ure or terms of the seller's refund, 
cancellation. exchange, or repurchase 
policies; 

(v) Any rna.terial aspect of a prize 
promotion including, but not limited 
to, the odds of being able to receive a 
prize, the nature or value of a prize, or 
that a purchase or· payment is required 
to win a prize or t;o participate in a 
prize promotion; 

(vi) Any material aspect of an invest­
ment opportunity including, but not 
limited to, risk. liquidity, earnings po­
tential, or profitability; 

(vii) A seller's or telemarketer's af­
filiation with, or endorsement or spon­
sorship by. any person or government 
entity; 

(viii) That any eustomer needs of­
fered goods or services to provide pro­
tections a customer already has pursu­
ant to 15 U.S.C. 1643; 

(lxl Any mat.erial aspect of a nega­
tive option feature including, but not 
limited to, the fact that the customer's 
account will be charged unless the cus­
tomer tn.kes an affirmative twtion to 
avoid the charge!s), the date(s) the 
charge(s) will be submitted for p:w­
ment, and the specific steps the cus­
tomer must take to avoid the 
oharge(s); or 

(x) Any mateJ.'ial <t.~pect of any debt 
relief service, including, but not lim-
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lted to, thP. amount of money or the 
percentage of t.he debt amount that a 
customer may save by u:Jing such serv­
ice; the amount of time necessary t.o 
achieve the represented results; the 
amount of money or the percentage of 
each outstanding debt that the cus­
tomer must accumulate before the pro­
vider of the debt relief service will ini­
tiate attempts with the customer's 
creditors or debt collectors or make a 
bona fide offer to negotiate, settle, or 
modify the terms of the customer's 
debt.; t;he effect of the service on a cus­
tomer's <\reditworthiness; the effect of 
the service on collection efforts of the 
customer's creditors or debt collectors: 
the percentage or number of customers 
who attain the represented results: and 
whether a debt relief service is offered 
or proyided by a non-profit entity. 

(3) Causing billing information to he 
submitted for payment, ur collecting or 
attempting to collect payment for 
goods or services or a charitable con­
tribution. d!rect,ly or indirectly, with­
out the customer's or donor's express 
verifiable authorization. except when 
the method of payment used is a <~redit 
card subject to protections of the 
Truth in Lending Act and Regulation 
Z,66l or a deb! t card subjeet to the pro­
tections of the Electronic Fund Trans­
fer Act and Regulation E.6cJ Such au­
thorization shall be deemed verifiable 
if auy of the following me.tns is em­
ployed: 

(!) Express written authorization by 
the customer or donor, which includes 
the customer's or donor's signature;663 

(ii) Express oral authorization which 
ls audio-recorded and made available 
upon request to the customer or donor, 
and the custome1·'s or donor's bank or 
other billing entity, and which evi­
dencml olearly both the customer's or 
donor's authorization of payment for 

""' Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. 160! et 
~oq., and Regulation Z. 12 CFR part 226. 

""' Ele<:tl'onic Fund Transfer Act, 15 U.S.C. 
1693 et seq .. and Regulation E, 12 C~'R part. 
205. 

"" For purposes of this Rule, the term 
·',lgnature" shall include an electronic or 
digital form of signature. to the extent that 
such form of signature is recognized as a. 
valid signature under applicable foderal law 
or state contract law. 
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the goods or services or charitable con­
tribution that are the subject of the 
telemarketing tram1action and the cus­
tomer's or donor's rocoipt of all of the 
following information: 

\A) The number of debits. charges. or 
payments (if more than one); 

(B) The rtate(s) the rtebit(s). 
charge(s), or payment(s) will be sub­
mitted for payment; 

(C) The amount(s) of the debit(s), 
charge(s), or payment.(s); 

(D) The eust.omer's or donor's name: 
IE) 'l'he oustomer's or donor's billing 

information, identified with sufficient 
specificity such that the customer or 
donor understands what account will 
be used to collect payment for the 
goods or services or eharitable con­
tribution that are the subject of t.he 
telemarketing transaction: 

(F') A telephone number for customer 
or donor inquiry that is answered dur­
ing normal business hours; and 

(G) 'l'he date of the customer's or do­
nor's oral authorization: or 

(iii) Written confirmation of the 
transaction, identified in a clear and 
conspicuous manner as such on the 
outside of the envelope, sent to the 
customer or donor via first class mail 
prior to the submission for payment of 
the customer's or donor's billing infor­
mation. and that includes all of the in­
formation contained in 
§§310.3(al(3)(ii)(A)-(G) and a cloa.r and 
c.onspicuous statement of the proce­
dures by which the customer or donor 
can obtain a refund from the seller or 
telemarketer or ch:1.ritable organiza­
tion in the event the confirmation is 
inaccurate; provided, however. that 
this means of authorization shall not 
be deemed verifiable in instances in 
which goods or services are offered in a 
transaction involving a free-to-pay 
eonversion and preacquired account in­
formation. 

(4) Making a false or misleading 
statement to induce any person to pay 
for goods or services or to induce a 
charitable contribution. 

(b) Assisting and facilitating. It is a de­
ceptive telemarketing act or practice 
and a violation of this Rule for a per­
son to provide substantial assistance or 
support to any seller or telemarketcr 
when that person knows or consciously 
u.volds knowing that the seller or cele-
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marketer is engaged in any act or pl·ac­
tice that violates §§310.3(a). (c) or (d). 
or §310.4 of this Rule. 

(C) Credit card laundering. Except as 
expressly permitted by the applicable 
credit card system. it is a deceptive 
telemat·ketlng act or practice and a 
violation of this Rule for: 

<1) A merchant to present to or de­
posit into. or cause another to present 
to or deposit into, the credit card sys­
tem for payment, a credit card sales 
draft generated by a telemarketing 
transaction that is not the result of a 
telemarketing credit card transaction 
between the t~rdholcler and the mer· 
chant; 

(2) Any person to employ, soiicit, or 
otherwise cause a merchant, or an em­
ployee, representative, or agent of the 
merchant, to present to or deposit into 
the credit card system for payment, a 
credit card sales draft generated by a 
telemarketing transaction that is not 
the result of a telemarketing credit 
c'ird transl.ct.ion between the card­
holder and the merchant; or 

(3) Any person to obtain access to the 
eredit card system through the use of a 
business relationship or an affiliation 
with <1. merchant, when such access is 
not authorized by the merchant agree­
ment or t;he applicable credit card sys­
tem. 

(dJ Prohibited deceptive acts or prac­
tices in the solicitation of charitable con­
tributions. It is a fraudulent charitable 
solicitation, a deceptive telemarketing 
act or practice. and a violation of this 
Rule for any telemarketer soliciting 
charitable eontributions to misrepre­
sent. directly or by implication, any of 
the following material .information: 

(1) The nature, purpose. or mission of 
any entity on behalf of which a chari­
table contribution is being requested: 

(2) That any charitable contribution 
is tax deductible in whole or in part: 

(3) The purpose for which any ehari­
table contribution will be used; 

(4) The percentage or amount of any 
oha.ritable contribution that will go to 
a charitable organization or to any 
partieular charitable program; 

(5) Any material aspect of a prize 
promotion including, but not limited 
to: the odds of being able to receive a 
prize: the nature or value of a prize; or 
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that a charitable contribution is m­
quired to win a prize or to participate 
in a prize promotion; or 

(6) A charitable organization's or 
telemarketer's affiliation with. or en­
dorsement or sponsorship by, any per­
son or government entity. 

§ 310.4 Abusive telemarketing acts or 
practices. 

(a) Abusive conduct generally. It is an 
abusive telemarketing act or practice 
and ~~ violat;ion of this Rule for any 
seller or telemarketer to engage in the 
following conduct: 

(1) Threats, JntimidaLion. or the use 
of profane or obseene language; 

(2) Requesting OJ:' receivln~ payment 
of any fee or consideration for goods or 
services represented to remove deroga­
tory information from, or improve, a 
person's credit history, credit record, 
or credit rating until: 

(i) The time frame in which the seller 
has represented all of the goods or 
services will be provided to that person 
has expired; and 

Oi) Tho seller has providetl the person 
with documentation in the form of a 
consumer report from a consumer re­
porting ag·ency demonstrating that the 
promised results have been achieved, 
such report having been issued more 
than six months after the results were 
achieved. Nothing in this Rule should 
be construed to affect the requirement 
in the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 
U.S.C. 1681, that a consumer report 
may only be obtained for a specified 
permissible purpose; 

(3) Requesting or receiving payment 
of anY fee or consideration from a per­
son for goods or services represented to 
recover or otherwise as.>ist in the re· 
turn of money or any other item of 
value paid for by, or promised to, that 
person in a previous telemarketing 
transaction. nntil seven (7) business 
days after such money or other item is 
delivered to that person. This provision 
shall not apply lo goods or services 
provided to a person by a licensed at­
torney; 

(4) Requesting or receiving payment 
of any fee or consideration in advance 
of obtaining a loan or other extension 
of credit when the seller or tale­
marketer has guaranteed or rep­
resented a high likelihood of success in 
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obtaining or arranging a loan or other 
extension of credit for a person; 

(5)(i) Requesting or receiving pay­
ment of any fee or consideration for 
any debt relief service until and unless: 

(A) The seller or telemarketer has re­
negotiated. settled, reduced, or other­
wise altered the terms of at least one 
debt pursuant to a settlement agree­
ment, debt management plan, or other 
such valid contractual agreement exe­
cuted by the customer; 

(B) The customer has made at least 
one payment pursuant to that settle­
ment agreement, debt mam1.gement 
plan, or other valid contractual agree· 
ment between the customer and the 
creditor or debt collector; and 

(C) To the extent that debts enrolled 
in a service are renegotiated, settled, 
reduced, or otherwise altered individ­
ually, the fee or consideration either: 

(1) Bears the same proportional rela­
tionship to the total fee for renegoti­
ating, settling, reducing, or altering 
the terms of the entire debt balance as 
the individual debt amount bears to 
the entire debt amount. The individual 
debt amount and the entire debt 
amount are those owed at the time the 
debt was enrolled in the service; or 

(2) Is a percentage of the amount 
saved as a result of the renegotiation, 
settlement. reduction, or alteration. 
'l'he percentage charged cannot change 
from one individual tlebt to another. 
The amount saved is the difference be­
tween the amount owed at the time the 
debt was enrolled in the service and the 
amount actually paid to satisfy the 
debt. 

(ii) Nothing in §310.4(a)(5)(1) prohibit., 
requesting or requiring the customer 
to place funds in an account to be used 
for the debt relief provider's fees and 
for payments to creditors or debt col­
lectors in connection with the renego­
tiation. settlement, reduction, or other 
alteration of the terms of payment or 
othel' terms of a debt. provided that: 

(A) The funds are held in an aecount 
at an insured financial institution; 

(B) The customer owns the funds held 
in the account and is paid accrued in­
terest on the aceount, if any; 

(C) 'rho entity administering the ac­
count is not owned or controlled by, or 
in any way affiliated with, the debt re­
lief service: 
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(D) Tho entitY administering tho ac­
count does not give or accept any 
money or other compensation in ex­
change for referrals of business involv­
ing the debt relief service; and 

(E) Tho customer may wi~hdraw from 
the debt relief service at any time 
without penalty, and must receive all 
funds in the account, other than funds 
ear·netl by the debt relief service in 
compliance with §310.4{a)(5)(i)(A) 
tht·ough (C), within seven (7) business 
days of the customer·~ request. 

(G) Disclosing or receiving, for con­
sideration. unencrypted consumer ac­
count numbers for use in tele­
marketing; provided, however, that 
this paragraph shall not apply to the 
disclosure or receipt of a customer's or 
donor's billing 1nformat.ion to process a 
payment for goods or services or a 
charitable contribution pursuant to a 
transaction; 

(7) Causing billing information to be 
submitted for payment, directly or in­
directly, without the express informed 
consent of the customer or donor. In 
any telemarketing transaction, the 
seller or telemarketer must obtain the 
express informed consent of the cus­
tomer or donor to be charged for the 
goods or services or char! table con­
tribution and to be charged using tbe 
identified account. In any tele­
marketing transaction involving 
pmacquired account information, the 
requirements in paragraphs (a)(7)(1) 
through (ii) of this section must be met 
to evidence express infor·med consent. 

(i) In any telemarketing transaction 
involving preacquired account informa­
tion and a free-to-pay conversion fea­
ture, the seller or telemarketer must: 

(A) Obtain from the customer, at a 
m!.nimum, the last four (4) digits of the 
account number to be charged; 

(B) Obtain from the cu.stomer his or 
her express agreement to be charged 
for the goods or services and to be 
charged using the account number pur­
suant to paragraph (a)(7)(i)(A) of this 
section; and, 

(C) Make and maintain an a.udio re­
cording of the entire telemarketing 
~ransaction. 

(ii) In any other t.elemarketing trans­
aet.ion involving preacqulred account 
information not described in paragraph 
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(a)(7)(i) of this sect.ion, the seller or 
teJemarket.er must: 

(A) At a minimum, identify the ac­
count to be charged with sufficient 
specificity for the customer or donor to 
understand what a.ccount will be 
charged; and 

(B) Obtain from the customer or 
donor his or her exprel'Js agreement to 
be charged for the goods ot· services 
and to be charged using the account 
number idontlfied pursuant to para­
graph (a)(7)(i!)(A) of this section; or 

(8) Failing to tranRmit or cause to be 
transmitted the telephone number, 
and, when made available by the tole­
marketer's carrier, the name of the 
telemarketer, to any caller identifica­
tion service in use by a recipient of a. 
telemarketing call; provided that it 
shall not be a violation to substitute 
(for the name and phone number used 
in. or billed for, making the call) the 
name of the seller or charitable organi­
zation on behalf of which a tele­
marketing ca11 is placed, and the sell­
er's or charitable organization's cus­
tomer or donor service telephone num­
ber. which is answered during regular 
business hours. 

<b) Pattern of calls. (1) It is an abusive 
telemarketing act or practice and a 
violation of t.his Rule for a tole­
marketer to engage in, or for a seller 
to cause a telemarketer to engage in, 
the following conduct: 

(i) Causing any telephone to ring, or 
engaging any person in telephone con­
versation, repeatedly or continuously 
with intent to annoy, abuse, or harass 
any person at the called number; 

(ii) Denying or interfering in any 
way, directly or indirectly, with a per­
son's right to be placed on any registry 
of names and/or telephone numbers of 
persons who do not wish to receive out­
bound telephone calls established to 
comply with §310.4(b)(l)(iii): 

(iii) Initiating any outbound tele­
phone call to a person when: 

(A) That person previously has stated 
that he or she does not wish to receive 
an outbound telephone call made by or 
on behalf of the seller whose goods or 
services are being offered or made on 
behalf of the charitable organization 
for which a charitable contribution is 
being solicited.; or 
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(Bl That person's telephone number 
is on the ''do-not-call'' registry, m.1.in­
tained by the Commission, of persons 
who do not wish to receive outbound 
telephone calls to induce the purchase 
of goods or services unless tl1e seller: 

(i) Has obtained the express agree­
ment, in writing, of such person to 
place calls to that person. Such writ!;en 
agreement shall clearly evidence such 
person's authorization that calls made 
by or on behalf of a specific party may 
be placed to that person, and shall in­
elude the telephone number to which 
the calls may be placed and the signa­
tureos4 of that person; or 

tii) Has an established business rela­
tionship with such person, and that 
person has not stated that he or :>he 
floes not wish to receive outbound tele· 
phone calls under paragraph 
(IJ)(l)(iii)(A) of this section: or 

(iv) Abandoning any outbound tele­
phone call. An out.bound telephone call 
.is "abandoned" under this section if a 
person answers it and the telemarketer 
does not connect the call to a sales rep­
resentative within two (2) seconds of 
the person's completed greeting. 

(v) Initiating any outbound telephone 
call that delivers a prerecorded mes­
sage, other than a prerecorded message 
permitted for compliance with the call 
abandonment safe harbor in 
§ 310.4(b)( 4)(111), unless: 

(A) In any such call to induce the 
purchase of any good or service, the 
seller has obtained from the recipient 
of the call an express agreement, in 
writing, that: 

(i) The seller obtained only after a 
elear and conspicuous disclosure that 
the purpose of the 11.greement is to au­
thorize the seller to place prerecorded 
cnJls to such person; 

(ii) The seller obtained without re­
quiring, directly or indirectly, that the 
agreement be executed as a condition 
of purchasing any good or service; 

(iii) Evidences the willingness of the 
recipient of the call to receive calls 
that deliver prerecorded messages by 
or on behalf of a specific seller; and 

••• For purposes of t;hls Rule. the t.erm 
·'signature" shall Include an electronic or 
digital form of signature. to the extent that 
such form of signature is recogni:.:ed as a 
valid signature under appllcable federal law 
or state contract law. 

§310.4 

(iv) Includes such person'::J telephone 
number and signature;css and 

(B) In any such eall to Induce the 
purchase of any good or service, or to 
induce a charitable contribution from a 
member of, or previous donor to. a non­
profit charitable organi~aLion on whose 
behalf the call is made, the seller or 
t.elemarketer: 

(i) Allows the telephone to ring for at 
least fifteen (15) seconds or four (4) 
rings before disconnecting an unan­
swered call; and 

(il) Within two (2) seconds after the 
completed greeting of the person 
called, plays a prerecorded message 
that pro!l1ptly provides the disclosures 
required by §310.4(d) or (e), followed 
immediately by a disclosure of one or 
both of the following: 

(A) In the case of a call that could be 
answered in person by a consumer, that 
the person called can use an automated 
interactive voice andior keypress-acti­
vated opt-out mechanism to assert a 
Do Not Call request pursuant to 
§310.4(b)(l)(iii)(A) at any time during 
the message. The mechanism must: 

(1) Automatically add the number 
called to the seller's entity-specific Do 
Not Call list; 

(2) Once invoked, immediately dis­
connect the call; and 

(3) Be available for use at any t.tme 
during the message; and 

(B) In the case of a call that could be 
answered by an answering machine or 
voioemail service, that the person 
called can use a toll-free telephone 
number to assert a Do Not Call request 
pursuant to §310.4(b)(l)(i!i)(A). The 
number provided must connect directly 
to an automated interactive voice or 
keypress-activated opt-out mechanism 
that: 

(1) Automatically adds the number 
called to the seller's entity-specific Do 
Not Call list; 

(2) Immediately thereafter dis­
connects the call; and 

(3) Is accessible at any time through­
out the duration of the telemarket,ing 
campaign; and 

<'CS For purposes of this Rule, the term 
"signature" sha,U include an electronic or 
digital form of signature. to the extent. that 
8uoh form of sig·na.tum !;; recognized as a 
valid signature under applicahla federal law 
or state contract law. 
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(iii) Complies with all other require­
ments of this part and other appllcable 
federal and state laws. 

<C) Any call that compl.i.es with all 
applicable requirements of this para­
gmph (v) shall not be deemed to violate 
§310.4(bJ(l )(IV) oft.hls part. 

(D) '!'his paragraph (v) shall not apply 
to any outbound telephone call that de­
l!vers a prerecorded heal thcare mes­
sage made by, or on behalf of, a covered 
c;nt.it.y or its business associate, as 
those terms are defined in the HIPAA 
Priv.~cy Rule, 45 C:FR 160.103. 

(2) It is an abusive t.elemarketlng act 
or practice and a violation of this Rule 
for any person to sell, rent, lease. pur­
chase, or use any Jist established to 
comply wit.h §310.4(b)(l)(iii)(A), or 
maintained by the Commission pursu­
ant to §310.1<b)(l)(iii)(B). for any pur­
pose except compliance with the provi­
sions of this Rule or otherwise to pre­
vent telephone calls to telephone num­
bers on such lists. 

(3) A seller or telemarketer will not 
be liable for violating §310.4(b)(l)(i1) 
and (iii) if it can demonstrate that. as 
part; of the seller's or telemarketer's 
routine business practice: 

(1) It has established and imple­
mented written procedures to comply 
with §310.4(b)(l)(ii) and (iii); 

(ii) It has trained its personnel, and 
any entity assisting in its compliance, 
in the procedures established pursuant 
to §310.4(b)(3)(i); 

(iii) The seller, or a telemarketer or 
a.nother person acting on behalf of the 
seller or charitable organization, has 
maintained and recorded a Jist of tele­
phone numbers the seller or charitable 
organization may not contact, in com­
pliance with §310.4(b)(l)(!ii)(A)i 

(iv) The seller or a telemarketer uses 
a process to prevent telemarketing to 
any telephone number on any list es­
tablished pursuant to § 310.4(b)(3)(iil) or 
310.4(b)(l)(iii)(B), employing a version 
of the ·'do-not-call" registry obtained 
from the Commission no more than 
thirty-one (31) days prior to the date 
any call is made. and maint.'l.ins 
records documenting this process; 

(v) '!'he seller or a telemarketer or 
another person acting on behalf of the 
seller or charit::tble organization, mon­
itors and enforces compliance with the 
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procedures established pursuant t:o 
§ 310.4(h)(3)(i); and 

(Vi) Any subsequent call otherwise 
violating §310.4(h)(l)(ii) or (iii) is the 
result of error. 

(4) A seller or telemarketer Will not 
be liable for violating §310.4(b)(l)(iv) if: 

(i) The seller or telemarketer em­
ploys technology that ensurss aban­
donment of no more than three (3) psr­
cent of all calls answered by a person, 
measured over the duration of a single 
calling c,tmpaign, if Jess than 30 days, 
or separately over each successive 30-
day period or portion thereof that the 
campaign continues. 

(ii) '!'he seller or tclemarketer. for 
each telemarketing call placed, allows 
the telephone to ring for at least fif­
teen (15) seconds or four (4) rings before 
disconnecting an unanswered can: 

(iii) Whenever a sales representative 
is not available to speak with the per­
son answering the call within two (2) 
seconds artor the person's completed 
greeting, the seller or telemarketer 
promptly plays a recorded message 
that states the name and telephone 
number of the seller ott whose behalf 
the call was placed666; and 

(lv) The seller or telemarketer. in ac­
cordance with §310.5(b)-(d), retains 
records establishing compliance with 
§ 310.4(b)(4)(i)-(iii). 

(c) Calling time restrictions. Without 
the prior consent of a person, it is an 
abusive telemarketing act or practice 
and a violation of this Rule for a tele­
ma.rketer to engage in outbound tele· 
phone calls to a person's residence at 
any time other than between 8:00 a.m. 
and 9:00 p.m. local time at the caJied 
person's location. 

(d) Required oral disclosures in the sale 
of goods or services. It is an abusive tele­
marketing act or practice and a viola­
tion of this Rule for a telemarketer in 
an outbound telephone call or internal 
or external upsell to induce the pur­
chase of goods or services to fail to dis­
close truthfully, promptly, and in a 
clear and conspicuous manner to the 
person receiving the c:tll, the following 
information: 

566 This provision does not affect any sell­
er's or telemarketer's oblig·ation to comply 
with relevant slate and federal laws, inolU<i· 
ing but 11ot limited to the TCPA, 47 U.S.C. 
227, and 47 CFR part 61.1200. 
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(1) The identity of the seller; 
<2) That the purpose of the call is to 

sell goods or services; 
(3) The nature of the goods or serv­

ices: and 
(4) That no purchase or payment is 

necessary to be able to win a prize or 
participate in a prize promotion if a 
prize promotion is offered and that any 
purch:~.se or payment will not increase 
the person's chances of winning. This 
disclosure must be made before or in 
conjunction with the description of the 
prize to the person ealled. If requested 
by t.hat person, the telemarketcr must 
disclose the no-purchase 'no-payment 
entry method for the prize promotion; 
provided, however. that. in any inter­
nal upsell for the sale of goods or serv­
Ices, the seller or telemarketer must 
provide the disclosures listed in this 
section only to the extent that the in­
formation in the upsell differs from the 
disclosures provided In the initial tele­
marketing transaction. 

!e) Required oral disclosures in chari­
table solicitations. It ls an abusive tele­
marketing act or practiee and a v.lola­
tion of this Rule for a telemar.keter. in 
an outbound telephone call to induce a 
charitable contribution, to fail to dis­
close truthfully, promptly, and in a 
clear and conspicuous manner to t.he 
person receiving the call, the following 
information: 

(1) The identity of the charitable or­
"anization on behalf of which the re­
quest is being made; and 

(2) That the purpose of the call is to 
solicit a charitable contribution. 

[75 FR 48516, Aug. 10, 2010, as amended ae 76 
FR. 58716. Sept. 22, 2011) 

§ 310.5 Recordkeeping requirements. 
(a) Any seller or telemarketer shall 

keep, for a period of 24 months from 
the date the record is produced, the fol­
lowing records relating to its tele­
marketing activities: 

(1) All substantia.Uy different adver-
tising, brochures, telemarketing 
scripts, and promotional materials; 

<2) The name and last known address 
of each prize recipient and Lhe prize 
awarded for prizes that are rep­
resented, directly or by implication, to 
have a value of S25.00 or more; 

(3) The name and last known address 
of oach eustomer. the goods or services 
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purchased, tbe date such goods or serv­
ices were shipped or provided. and the 
amount paid by the customer for the 
goods or services;667 

(4) The name, any fictitious name 
used, the last known home address and 
telephone number, and the job title(s) 
for all current and former employees 
directly involved in telephone sales or 
solicitations: prov!rled, however, that if 
the seller or telemarketer permits fic­
titious names to he used by employees. 
ectch fictitious name must be t.raeeable 
to only one specific employee; and 

(,'il All verifiable authorizations or 
records of express informed consent or 
express agreement required to be pt·o­
vided or received under this Rule. 

(b) A seller or telemarketer may 
keep the records required by §310.5(a) 
in any form, and in the same manner. 
format. or pla.ce as they keep such 
records in the ordinary course of busi~ 
ness. Failure to keep all records re­
quired by §310.5(a) shall be a violation 
of this Rule. 

(c) The seller and t.he telemarketer 
calling on behalf of the seller may, by 
written agreement. allocate responsi­
bilit.y between themselves for the rec­
ordkeeping required by this Section. 
When a seller and telemarketer have 
entered into such an agreement, the 
terms of that agreement shall govern, 
and the seller or telemarketer. as the 
ca.se may be, need not keep records 
that duplicate those of the other. lf the 
agreement is unclear as to who must 
maintain any required record(s), or if 
no such agreement exists. the sailer 
shall he responsible for complying with 
§§:n0.5(a)(l)-(3) and (5); the tole­
marketer shall be responsible for com­
plying with §310.5(a)(4). 

(d) In the event of any dissolution or 
termination of the seller's or tale­
marketer's lmsiness, the principal of 
that seller or telemarketer shall main­
tain all records as required under this 
seot.ion. In the event of any sale, as­
signment, or other change in ownership 

""'' Fo1· offers of consume~· credit products 
s11bject to the Truth in Lending Act. 15 
U.S.C. 1601 et seq., and Regulation z. 12 CFR 
226, compllance with the reoordkeeplng re, 
quil-ements under the Truth in Lending Act, 
and Regulation z. shall constitute compli, 
ance with §310.5(a)(3) of this Rule. 
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of Lhe seller's or telemarketer's busi· 
ness, the sucnessor business shall main· 
Lain all renords required under this sec­
tion. 

§310.6 Exemptions. 
(a) Solicitations to induce charitable 

contributions via outbound telephone 
calls are not covered by 
§310.4(b){l)(iii)(B) of this Rulfl. 

(b) The following acts or practices 
are exempt from this Rule: 

(1) The sale of pay-per-call services 
subject to !.he Commission's Rule enti­
t,led "Trade Regulation Rule Pursuant 
to the Telephone Disclosure and Dis­
pute Resolution Act of 1992." 16 CFR 
Part 308. prm1ided, however, that this 
exemption does not. apply to the re­
quirements of §§ 310.4(a)(l), (a)(7), (b), 
and (c); 

(2) The sale of franchises subject to 
the Commission's Rule entitled "Dis­
closure Requirements and Prohibitions 
Concerning Franchising," ("Franchise 
Rule") 16 CFR Part 436, and the sale of 
busineas opportunities subject to the 
Commission's Rule entitled "Disclo­
sure Requirements and Prohibitions 
Concerning BusineSR Opport.unities," 
(''Business Opportunity Rule") 16 CFR 
Part 437, provided, however, that this 
exemption does not apply to the re­
quirements of §§310.4(a)(l). (a)(7). (b), 
and (c): 

(3) Telephone calls In which the sale 
of goods or services or charitable solic­
itation is not completed. and payment 
or authorization of payment is not re­
r.tuired. until after a face-to-face sales 
or donation presentation by the seller 
or charitable organization, provided. 
however. that this exemption does not 
apply to the requirements of 
§§310.4(a)(l). (a)(7). (b), and (c): 

(4) Telephone calls initiated by a cus­
tomer or donor that are not the result 
of any solicitation by a seller, chari­
table organization. or telemarketer, 
provided, however, that this exemption 
doos not apply to any instances of 
upselling included in such telephone 
calls; 

(5} 'l'elephone calls initiated by a cus­
tomer or donor in response to an adver­
tisement through any medium, other 
than direct mail solicitation, provided, 
however. that this exemption does not 
apply to calls initiated by a customer 
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or donor in response to an adverti::Je­
ment relating to investment opportuni­
ties, debt relief services, business op­
port.unities ot.her t.han business ar­
rangements covered by the Franchise 
Rule or Business Opportunity Rule. or 
advertisements involving goods or 
services described in §§310.3(a)(l)(vi) or 
310.4(a)(2}-(4l; or to any instances of 
upselling included in such telephone 
calls; 

(6) Telephone calls initiated by a cus­
tomer or donor in response to a direct 
mail tiolicltat.ion. including solici ta­
tions via the U.S. Postal Service, fac­
simile transmission. electronic mail, 
and other similar methods of delivery 
in which a solicit1~tion is directed to 
specific address(es) or person(s). that 
clearly, conspicuously, and truthfully 
discloses all material information list­
ed in §310.3(a)(l) of this Rule. for any 
goods or services offered in the direct 
mail solicitation, and that contains no 
material misrepresentation regarding 
any itt>m contained in §310.3(d) of this 
Rule for any requested charitable con­
tribution; provided. however. that this 
exemption does not apply to calls initi­
ated by a customer in response t;o a di­
rect mail solicitation relating to prlze 
promotions, investment opportunities, 
debt relief services, business opportuni· 
ties other than business arrangements 
covered by the J:i'ranchise Rule or Busi­
ness Opportunity Rule, or goods or 
services described in §§310.3(a)(1)(vi) or 
310.4(a)(2)-(4); or to any instances of 
upsell!ng included in such telephone 
calls: and 

(7) Telephone calls between a tela­
marketer and any business. except 
calls to induce the retail sale of non­
durable office or cleaning supplies; pro­
vided, however, that §310.4(b)(1J(iii)(B) 
and § 310.5 of t.his Rule shall not apply 
to sellers or telemarketers of non­
durable office or cleaning supplies. 

§ 310.7 Actions by states and private 
persons. 

(a) Any attorney general or other of­
ficer of a state authorized by the state 
to bring an action under the Tole· 
marketing and Consumer Fraud and 
Abuse Prevention Act, and any private 
person who brings an action under that 
Act, shall serve written notice of its 
action on the Commission. if feasible, 
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prior to its initiating an aetion under 
this Rule. The notice shall be sent to 
tho Office of tlle Director, Bureau of 
Consumer Protection, :B'eder~l Trade 
Commission, Washington, DC 20580. and 
shall include a copy of the state's or 
private person's complaint and any 
other pleadings to be filed with the 
court. If prior notice is not feasible, 
t.he state or private person shall serve 
t.he Commission with the required no­
tice immediately upon instituting its 
aetion. 

(bl Nothing contained in this Section 
shall prohibit any attorney general or 
other authorized state official from 
proceeding in state court on t.hA hasis 
of an alleged violation of any civil or 
criminal statute of such state. 

§ 310.8 Fee for access to the National 
Do Not Call Registry. 

(a) It is a violation of this Rule for 
any seller to initiate, or cause any 
tel.emarketer to initiate, an outbound 
telephone call to any person whose 
telephone number is within a given 
area code unless such seller. either di­
rectly or through another person, first 
has paid the annual fee, required by 
§310.8(o}, for ~wcess to telephone num­
bers within that area code that are in­
cluded in the National Do Not Call 
Registry maintained by the Commis­
sion under §310.4(b)(l)(iii)(B); provided, 
however. that such payment is not nec­
essary if the seller initiates, or causes 
a telemarketer to initiate, calls solely 
to persons pursuant to 
§§310.4(b)(l)(iii)(B)( i ) or ( !i ), and the 
seller does not access the National Do 
Not Call Registry for ttny other pur­
pose. 

(b) It is a violation of this Itule for 
any telemarketer, on behalf of any sell­
cr. to initiate an outbound telephone 
call to any person whose telephone 
number is within a given area code un­
less that seller, either directly or 
through another person, first has paid 
the annual fee, required by §310.8(cl. 
for access to the telephone numbers 
wit.hin that area code that are included 
in the National Do Not Call Registry; 
provided, however, that sucll payment 
is not necessary if the seller initiates, 
or causes a telernarketer to initiate, 
calls solely to persons pursuant to 
§§ 310.4(b)(l)!iii)(B)( i ) or ( ii ), and the 
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seller does not a.ccess t.he National Do 
.Not Call Registry for any other pur­
pose. 

(C) The annual fee, which must be 
paid by any person prior to obtaining· 
access to the Natiomtl Do Not Call 
Registry, is S!.i6 for each area code of 
data accessed, up to a maximum of 
$15,503: provided, however, that there 
shall be no charge to any person for ac­
cessing the first five area codes of data, 
and provided further, that there shall be 
no charge to any person engaging- in or 
eausing others to engage in outbound 
telephone calls to consumers and who 
is accessing area codes of data !n the 
NaLlonal Do Not Call Registry if the 
person is permitted to access, but is 
not required to access, the National Do 
Not Ca.ll Registry under this Rule, 47 
CFR 64.1200, or any other Federal regu· 
lation or law. Any person accessing the 
National Do Not Call Registry may not 
participate in any arrangement to 
share the cost of accessing the reg­
istry, including any arrangement with 
any telemarketer or service provider to 
divide the costs to access the registry 
among various clients of that tole­
marketer or service provider. 

(d) Each person who pays, either di­
rectly or through another person, the 
annual fee set forth !n §310.8(c), each 
person excepted under § 310.8(c) from 
paying the annual fee, and each person 
excepted from paying an annual fee 
under §310.4(b)(l)(iii)(B), wHl be pro­
vided a unique account number that 
will allow that person to access the 
registry data for the selected area 
codes at any time for the twelve month 
period beginning on the first day of the 
month in which the person paid the fee 
(-'the annual period''). To obtain access 
to additional area codes of data during 
the first six months of the annual pe­
riod, each person required ~o pay the 
foe under §310.8(o) must first pay S56 
for each additional area code of data 
not initially selected. To obtain access 
to additional area codes of data during 
the second six months of the annual pe­
riod, e'tch person required to pa.)l· the 
fee under §310.8(c) must first pay $28 
for each additional area code of data 
not initially selected, The p;cyment of 
the additional fee will permit the per· 
son t.o access the additional area codes 
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of data for the rE"mainder of the annual 
period. 

(e) Access to the National Do Not 
Call Registry is limited to tela­
marketers, sellers, others engaged in or 
causing others to engage in t.elephone 
calls to consumers, service providers 
acting on behalf of such persons, and 
any government agency that has law 
onforcement authority. Prior to access­
ing the National Do Not Call Registry, 
a person must provide the identifying 
information required by the operator of 
the registry to collect the fee, and 
must certify, under penalty of law. 
that the person is accessing the reg­
istr·y solely to comply with the provi­
sions of this Rule or to otherwise pre­
vent telephone calls to telephone num­
bers on the registry, If the person is ac­
cessing the registry on behalf of sell­
ers, that person also must identify 
each of the sellers on whose behalf it is 
accessing the registry, must provide 
each seller·s unique account numbm· 
for access to the national registry. and 
must certify, under penalty of law, 
that the sellers will be using the infor­
mation gathered from the registry 
solely to comply with the provisions of 
this Rule or otherwise Lo prevent tele­
phone calls to telephone numbers on 
the re!fistry. 

[75 FR 48516, Aug. 10, 2010; 75 FR 51934, Aug. 
24. 2010, as amended at 76 FR 53637. Aug. 29, 
20111 

§ 310.9 Severability. 
The provisions of this Rule are sepa­

rate and severable from one another. If 
an•· provision is stayed or determined 
to be invalid, it is the Commission's in­
tention that the remaining provisions 
shall continue in effect. 
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PART 304-RULES AND REGULA· 
TIONS UNDER THE HOBBY PRO· 
TECTION ACT 

S~c. 
301.1 Termlil defined. 
304.2 General requirement. 
304.3 Applicability. 
304.4 Appllcation of other law or regulation. 
301.5 Marking requirements for imitation 

poll tical items. 
304.6 Marking requirements for imlt;ation 

numismatic items. 

AUTHOlUTY: 15 U.S.C. 2101 et seq. 

SO\!IteE: 40 FR 5496, Io'eb. 6, 1975, unless oth­
erwise noted. 

§304.1 Terms defined. 
(a) Act means the Hobby Protection 

Act (approved November 29, 1973; Pub. 
r,. 93--167, 87 Stat. 686, (15 u.s.c. 2101 et 
seq.)). 

(b) Commerce has the same meanings 
as such t;erm has under the Federal 
Trade Commission Act. 

(c) Commission means the l~ederal 
Trade Commission. 

(d) Imitation numismatic item means an 
it.em which purports t.o be, but in fact 
is not. an original numismatic item or 
which is a reproduction, copy, or coun­
terfeit of an original numismatic item. 
Such term includes an original numis­
matic item which bas been altered or 
modified in such a manner that it 
could r·easonably purport to be an 
original numismatic. item other than 
the one which was altered or modified. 
The term shall not inc.lude any re-issue 
or re-st.rike of any original numismatic 
item by the United States or any fol'­
eign government. 

(e) Imitation political item means an 
item which pll!'ports to be, but in fact 
is not, an original political item, or 
which is a reproduction, copy or coun­
terfeit of an original item. 

(f) Or-iginal numismatic item means 
anything which has been a part of a 
coinage or issue which has been used in 
exchange or has been used to com­
memorate a person. object. place, or 
event. Such term includes coins. to­
kens, paper money, and commemora­
tive medals. 

(g) Original political item means any 
political button, poster, literature, 
sticker. or any advertisement produced 
for use in any poli tico.l cause. 
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(h) Person means any individual, 
group, association, partnership, or any 
other business entity. 

(i) Regulations means any or all regu .. 
lations prescribed by the Federal 'l'rade 
Commission pursuant to the Act. 

(j) United States means the States, 
t.lle Distric;t of Columbia, and the Com­
monwealth of Puerto Rico. 

(k) Diameter o[ a reproduction means 
the length of the longest possible 
straight llne uonnecting two points on 
the perimeter of the reproduction. 

[40 FR 5496. Feb. 6. 1975, as amended at 53 FR 
38942, Oct. 4, 1988] 

§ 304.2 General requirement. 

lmitatlon political or numismatic 
items subject to the Act shall be 
marked In conformity with the require­
ments of the Act and the regulations 
promulgated thereunder. Any violation 
of these regulations shall constitute a 
violation of the Act and of the Federal 
Trade Commission Act. 

§ 304.3 Applicability. 

Any person engaged in the manufac­
luring, or importation into the United 
States for introduction into or dis­
tribution in commerce, of imitation 
political or imitation numismatic 
items shall be subject to the require­
ments of the Act and the regulations 
promulgated thereunder. 

§ 304.4 Application of other law or reg· 
ulation. 

The provisions of these regulations 
are in addition to, and not in substi­
tution for or limitation of, the provi­
sions of any other law or regulation of 
the United StatP.S (Including the exist­
ing statutes and regulations prohib­
iting the reproduction of genuine cur­
rency) or of lhe law or regulation of 
ltny State. 

§ 304.5 Marking requirements for imi· 
tation politiCal items. 

(a) An imitation political item which 
is manufactured in the United States. 
or imported into the United States for 
introduction into or distribution in 
commerce, shall be plainly and perma­
nently marked with t,he calendar year 
in which such item was manufactured. 
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lb) 'l'he 0aleudar year shall be 
marked upon the item Jegib1y, con­
spicuously and nondeceptively, and ln 
accordance with the further require­
ments of these regulations. 

0) The calendar yen.r shall appear in 
arabic numerals. shall be based upon 
Lhe Gregorian calendar and shall con­
sist of four digits. 

(2} The calendar year shall be marked 
on either the obverse or the reverse 
surface of the item. It shall not. be 
marked on t.he edge of the item. 

(3) An imitation political item of 
iucusable material shall be inousod 
with the calendar year in sans-sex·if nu­
merals. Each numeral shaH have a 
vertical dimension of not less than two 
millimeters (2.0 mm) and a minimum 
depth of three-tenths of one millimeter 
(0.3 mm) or one-half (Va) the thickness 
of the reproduction, whichever is tho 
Jesser. The minimum total horizontal 
dimension for the four numerals com­
posing the oa1endar year shall be six 
millimeters (5.0 mm). 

(1) An imitation political button, 
poster. literature. sticker, or advertise­
ment composed of nonincusable mate­
rial shall be imprinted with the cal­
endar year in sans-serif numerals. Each 
numeral shall have a vertical dimen­
sion of not Jess than two millimeters 
(2.0 mm). 'l'he minimum total hori­
zontal dimension of the four numerals 
composing the calendar ye:tr shall be 
six millimeters (6.0 mm). 

§ 304.6 Marking requirements for imi· 
tation numismat1e items. 

(a) An imitation numismatic item 
which is manufactured in the United 
States, or imported into the United 
States for Introduction into or dis­
t.ribution in commerce. shall be plainly 
and permanently marked "COPY". 

(lJ) The word "COPY'' shall be 
marked upon t.hc item legibly, con­
spicuously, and nondeceptively, and in 
accordance with the further require­
ments of these regulations. 

(l) The word ''COPY" shall appear in 
capital letters, in the English lan­
guage. 

(2) The word "COPY'' shall be 
marked on either the obverse or the re· 
verse surface of the item. It shall not 
be marked on the edge of the item. 
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(3) An lmltatlon numismatic Item of 
incusable material shall be incused 
with the word "COPY" in sans-serif 
letters having a vertical dimension of 
not Jess than two millimeters (2.0 mm) 
or not less than one-sixth of the di~me­
ter of the reproduction, and a min­
imum depth of three-tenths of one mil­
limeter (0.3 mm) or to one-half (l/2) the 
thickness of tho reproduction, which­
ever Is the lesser. Tho minimum total 
horizontal dimension of the word 
·'COPY" shall be six millimeters (6.0 
mm) or not loss than one-half of the di­
ameter of the reproduction. 

(4) An imitation numismatic item 
composed of noninousable material 
shall be imprinted with the word 
"COPY" in sans-serif Jot.ters having a 
vertical dimension of not Jess than two 
millimeters (2.0 mm) or not less than 
one-sixth of the diameter of the repro­
duction. The minimum total horizontal 
dimension of the word ·'COPY" shall be 
six millimeters (6.0 mm) or not less 
than one-half of the diameter of the re­
production. 
(40 ~'R 5496. Feb. 6, 1975, as amended at 53 F'R 
38942. Oct. 4, 1988] 



UNITED STATES DISTRJCT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

--------·····--·-··················· 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

NATIONAL COLLECTOR'S MINT, INC., 

a Delaware corporation, and 

A VRAM C. FREED BERG, individually and 
as an officer of National Collector's Mint, 
Inc., 

Defendants. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT BY 
AFFIDAVIT OF RECEIPT OF .FINAL 
ORDER BY DEFENDANTS NATIONAL 
COLLECTOR'S MINT, INC. AND 
A VRAM FREED BERG 

1. My name is A vram Freedberg and my job title is President ofN ational Collector's Mint, 
Inc., ("NCM") and I am authorized to accept service of process on NCM. I am a U.S. citizen 
over the age of eighteen, and I have personal know ledge of the facts set forth in this 
Acknowledgment. 

2. I was a Defendant and NCM was a Defendant in FTC v. National Collector's Mint, Inc. 
and Avram Freedberg, which is the court case listed near the top of this page. 

3. On L_ __ , 201_], NCM and 1 received a copy of the Final Order, which was signed by 
the Honorable Judge and entered by the Court on [Month_, 201 _ _]. 

I declare under penalty ofperju.ry under the laws of the United States of America that the 
foregoing is true and correct. Executed on [Month__, 201 _ _]. 

Avram C. Freedberg 
Individually and as an oft!cer ofNCM 

State of ________ , City of _______ _ 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this __ day of , 201 

Notary Public 

My commission expires: 



UNITED STATES DISTR1CT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

NATIONAL COLLECTOR'S MINT, INC., 

a Delaware corporation, and 

A VRAM C. FREEDBERG, individually and 
as an officer of National Collector's Mint, 
Inc., 

Defendants. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT BY 
DECLARATION O.F RECEIPT OF 
FINAL ORDER BY A NON-PARTY 

I, ___ , received a copy of the Final Order in FTC v. 
National Collector's Mint, Inc. and Avram Freedherg on ___J 20_. 
I was not a Defendant in that court case. My title or relationship with Defendant(s) 

is ------------------
I declare under penalty ofpetjury under the laws of the United States of America that the 
foregoing is true and correct. 
Executed on __ __) 20_. 

Signed: 


